
La Villa des Impressionnistes***
15, quai Rennequin Sualem

� 01 30 08 40 00
www.villa-impressionnistes.fr
villa.impression@wanadoo.fr

Le Camélia
7, quai Georges Clémenceau

� 01 39 18 36 06
info@lecamelia.com

http://www.lecamelia.com

This leaflet was produced with the
sponsorship of :

Holiday Inn****
Restaurant Cap Sud
10, rue Yvan Tourguéniev

� 01 30 08 18 28
holidayinn.parvb@hotels-res.com
http://www.holidayinn.fr
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ASSOCIATIONS

Association
des Amis de Georges Bizet

16, rue Philippe Paget
78380 Bougival - � 01 30 82 79 29

benitacarteron@wanadoo.fr

Musée Ivan Tourguéniev
16, rue Yvan Tourguéniev

� 01 48 20 18 85 - 01 45 77 87 12
06 08 58 18 94  -  78380 Bougival

musee.tourgueniev@wanadoo.fr

Patrimoine et Urbanisme

16, rue Philippe Paget
78380 Bougival - � 01 30 82 79 29

gwolfers@free.fr

Aide Ménagère

aux Personnes Agées
126, rue du Maréchal Jo3re

78380 Bougival - � 01 30 78 25 94
service.aides.menageres@ville-bougival.fr

Boulangerie-Patisserie

Joly
5, rue du Général Leclerc -78380 Bougival

�
01 39 69 01 11

Jean-Pierre et Viviane Chéron
36, rue du Général Leclerc

78380 Bougival � 01 39 69 02 77
au5ngastronomes@orange.fr

Aux Fins Gastronomes

Aux Trois Billards
Bar - Plats du Jour - Billard français
Fernand et Marie-Charlotte Roussel

70 rue du Général Leclerc
78380 Bougival  � 01 39 69 16 21

17, Quai Clémenceau
� 01 39 69 17 67

78380 Bougival
Fax : 01 39 69 19 88

UNE RELATION DURABLE, CA CHANGE LA VIE

ILE DE FRANCE

Le Maroc en Yvelines
Spécialités Marocaines depuis 1988

3, quai Boissy d’Anglas
� 01 39 18 11 18
www.marocenyvelines.com

D 5

Musée de la Grenouillère
Maison Joséphine
6 bis, Grande Rue

78290 Croissy-Sur-Seine
�  01 30 15 18 69

Email : grenouillere@wanadoo.fr
http://www.grenouillere-museum.com

ICI
VOTRE PROCHAINE

PUBLICITÉ

21 rue des Moulins 78290 Croissy sur Seine
� 01 39 18 14 67 - lartdestoits@wanadoo.fr

L’Art des Toits
Couverture-Plomberie
Chauffage-Sanitaires

Jean-Pierre Pilard
7, rue de la Butte de la Celle

78380 Bougival - �01 39 69 03 93
jppilard@free.fr

Chambres d’Hôtes

A
long the curving banks of the river Seine, just 17 km
west of Paris, nestled in the valley of the Drionne, lies
the village of Bougival.

Bougival is situated between the hilltop village of Louveciennes and
the picturesque wooded hill of la Jonchère- known as the
« Impressionists’ Hill » due to the numerous visits paid to that spot
by many famous impressionists at the end of the 19th century.

The origins of Bougival.

In Roman times, a road which linked Paris to Rouen ran
through the village, along the banks of the river, and a small
hamlet developed on this site, known to locals as « La Chaussée ».
« La Chaussée » became « La Chaussée Charlevanne », a site
famous or notorious until 1778 for its Leprosy Hospital-the largest
in the country, known as Sainte-Madeleine de Charlevanne. The
name Charlevanne may well be linked to the the fishing industry
which flourished in the middle-ages in and around Bougival.
Indeed, king Charles Martel had a fishery built on the banks of the
river Seine where Bougival now stands, and this became known
locally as « la vanne de Charles » or « Charles’ fishery ».

Higher up, on the hill which faces the church, was the small
hamlet of « Saint Michel de la Houssaye », which appears to have
been a settlement in pre-historic times since a large number of
flint arrow heads were discovered there. From the Chaussée
Charlevanne, one could use a lane which led upward onto the hill
towards Louveciennes. This was a much used route, known as the
« Chemin du Hariel » after the cart horses (chevaux de hariaux)
which were led daily up to the fields in Louveciennes. Also origi-
nating on the Chaussée Charlevanne was the oldest of Bougival’s
streets, « la grande rue du Chef de Ville » (now known as the rue
du Maréchal Joffre) which ran south towards La Celle and
Versailles.

In the mid 13th century, the village of Bougival passed from the
Lord of Marly into the hands of the Lord of Poissy, and it was used
regularly in exchanges of land between nobles in the area. The
Marquis Joseph de Mesmes, Lord of La Chausée from 1716
onwards officially became proprietor and landlord of Bougival in
1774. His motto « Toujours de Mesmes » and his coat of arms have
remained those of Bougival to this day.

The Reign of the Sun King.

In the mid-17th century, Bougival was a quiet village of 500 inha-
bitants. The lives of these 500 people were to change irremediably
when the ambitious and visionary Louis XIV launched an extraordi-
nary project : the construction of a large machine which would lite-
rally convey water from the river Seine several miles away, to the
fountains and gardens of the palaces in Versailles and Marly. It was
a challenging project, not least because the water would have to be
transported 150 metres up a steep hill. In 1675, Louis’ famous

minister Colbert, approached the Belgian architect Arnold de Ville
and commissioned him with the project in Bougival. Arnold de Ville
immediately sought the help and advice of a fellow Belgian
Rennequin Sualem, who, though a mere illiterate carpenter, single-
handedly designed and supervised the construction of the
« Machine de Marly ». This spectacular and complex design of
pumps, pipes and wheels effectively transported water to Louis
XIV’s palaces. If you visit the Church, be sure to seek out the
commemorative plaque which was unveiled in memory of
Rennequin Sualem, the « inventor » of the « Machine de Marly » and
of his wife Marie Nouelle.

The machine may have been hailed by many as the Eighth
Marvel of the world, but for the villagers of Bougival it was a source
of great disruption and trauma. The grinding noise of the machi-
nery was unbearable and river transport was badly affected since
part of the river had to be closed off. As a consequence of all this,
the fisheries were ruined and the once thriving little port of
Charlevanne was closed down. Of the original machine, there is
little left-an 18th century building, and a small red brick construction
dating back to Napoleon III. It was in 1817 that the machine ceased
to be exploited and was demolished and replaced by a series of
other machines. These subsequent machines were finally demoli-
shed in 1968.

The Industrial Revolution

It was in 1838 that the building of locks on the river Seine
permitted triver transport on a stretch of the river that had hitherto
been impracticable. The river Seine rapidly became a popular
means of communication and transport between Paris and the
Channel. The steady flow of barges and steam boats became so
intense that Bougival was forced to build two new locks in 1883 to
keep up with the rising pressure on the river’s infrastructure.

Despite the rapid changes brought about by the opening stages
of the industrial revolution, the population of Bougival remained
firmly agricultural with farmers, wine growers and horticulturalists
making up the bulk of the population. Nevertheless, the ongoing
economic growth in the early 19th century did lead to an enhanced
exploitation and development of the local quarries originally used
in the 17th century. These produced building stone, chalk stone and
slates. Also new on the local scene were the laundries and the
cotton manufactures which employed many local women.

1837 witnessed the opening of the first railway line between
Paris and Le Pecq with a stop at nearby Rueil Malmaison for the 
villagers of Bougival. Horse drawn carriages, the « omnibus » or
horse-drawn ancestor of the tram, and later the steam engine (1874)
all contributed to making the surrounding countryside accessible to
formerly city-bound Parisians in search of bucolic escapades.

Bougival was not spared during the 1870 war against Prussia
and many villagers fled south before the Prussian invasion. Some
decided to stay on and face the hardships imposed on them by the
occupying forces. François Debergue, a local gardener attained the

Seeing the Sights
The Islands

and the quai Rennequin Sualem
Red circuit

Ile de la Chaussée
Where you will find the municipal park and the local sports ground.
There is a boat stop under the Bougival-Croissy Bridge.

The « Machine de Marly »
Commissioned by Louis XIV to provide water for the gardens of his
palaces at Marly and Versailles. The Machine de Marly was erected
from 1681 onwards, on request of Minister Colbert, by architect
Arnold de Ville who unsrupulously claimed as his own the ambitious
project designed by another man-Rennequin Sualem. Rennequin
Sualem was an illiterate genius who devised a means of conveying
water up a steep hill through a complex system of wheels, pipes and
pumps. Fourteen wheels, each measuring 14 metres in diametre took
up the entire stretch of the Seine at this spot, communicating their
movement through connecting-rods to pumps placed higher up.

The buildings which remain today are the 18th century home of the
foreman, the mending workshops and the Louis-Philippe building,
last remnant of the second Machine de Marly, which housed fire
fuelled pumps. On the Seine, half-way accross the river you will notice
a small red brick building, erected under Napoleon III and later
depicted by the painter Sisley.

The Locks
and the Ile de la Loge
The plan to build a second Machine de
Marly, under Charles X and later
Napoleon III was closely linked to the
urgent need to restore river transport
to Bougival and the surrounding area.
This was achieved by the construction
of a lock. Situated between the Ile de la
Loge and the Ile Gautier, the old lock
dates back to 1838.In order to keep up
with the increasing pressure on the
river’s infrastructure, additional locks
were installed from 1879 to 1883.

The Coq Hardy
15 Quai Rennequin Sualem
This group of buildings once housed the prestigious restaurant « Le
Coq Hardy » which was world famous for its exquisite cuisine and its
spectacular wine cellars that stretched deep into the adjoining hill-
side. The « Coq Hardy » was a favourite of the rich and famous who
could be seen in the warm summer months, dining out in the
restaurant’s beautifully landscaped gardens. The current owners,
the restaurant « Chez Clément » have sought to preserve a little of
the atmosphere that made the « Coq Hardy » famous and you can
see on the restaurant’s façade the emblem of the « Coq Hardy » - a
cockerel.

Mistinguett’s House
3 quai Rennequin Sualem
The famous actress and music-hall
entertainer, and partner of Maurice
Chevalier, Mistinguett owned this
property. She died there on 5th

January 1956. The carved initials on
the front door are those of her real
name, Jeanne Bourgeois.

Les Lions
69 to 82 quai Boissy d’Anglas
Of the vast property that once belonged to the Duchesse de Lansay,
little remains but the imposing wrought iron gates and the famous
stone lions. Gordon Benett who founded the New York Herald
Tribune is known to have stayed at the Domaine de Lansay.

La Montgolfière
56 to 68 quai Boissy d’Anglas
This local monument-a column, was erected by the writer and poli-
tician Boissy d’Anglas in memory of his friends the Montgolfier
brothers-famous for designing the first hot air balloon.

This column is also the last trace of a large domain covering 27 acres
which was known as the « Val d’Anglas » and belonged to the former
revolutionary « député » of Annonay. He became a count under
Napoleon, was made a Lord by Louis XVIII and became a member
of the prestigious Academy Française.

Town centre and the Saint-Michel
Neighbourhood.

Green circuit

Berthe Morisot’s House
1 Avenue de la Drionne
This house is currently a medical centre. When Berthe Morisot
lived here, her garden (see picture) stretched as far as the Drionne.
It was in this now long lost garden that she painted many of the
pictures which were to become so evocative of her style.

« Garden in Bougival » by Berthe Morisot, Marmottan Museum to Paris

The chalk and limestone quarries
This type of quarry was common in the area which is very chalky.
The 17th century witnessed the heyday of the quarries in Bougival.
They were used to extract lime for limestone furnaces. Some of the
quarries were later used for growing mushrooms or as cellars for
storing wine.

The Cemetery
Many famous historical figures are buried at Bougival-the Countess
of Boissy d’Anglas, the writer Emile Richebourg and the satirist Paul
Avenel amongst others. Many of the 1870 war veterans such as
François Debergue were laid to rest in Bougival’s graveyard.

The Saint-Michel
Neighbourhood
This is one of the quaintest
and oldest parts of Bougival.
In olden times, there 
were several vineyards in
this area, and local winegro-
wers lived in the pretty
cottages clustered round a
small village square. Beneath
the outside staircases,
discreetly concealed, were
the entrances to the large
cellars were barrels were
stored.

Lavoir
Rue Gabriel Péri 
Walk downhill and turn
right, you will come across
an small former open air
public washing-house or 
« Lavoir ». Virtually unique in 

the Paris area, this washing-house has the particularity of being
virtually roofless to let rainwater in. It is now disused but in the past
it was kept full and clean by spring and rainwater. A small chapel
erected in 846 once stood on the corner of the rue de la Vallée, it was
dedicated to the worship of St Michael-or « St Michel » who was
believed to have protected the inhabitants of the village from Norman
invasion. The chapel was rebuilt over the centuries but was finally
destroyed in 1796.

The Townhall
126 Rue du Maréchal Joffre
Formerly a private home, this 
building started being used as a
townhall in1963. In the garden,
you will notice a large sculpture of
the « Eagle of Waterloo » by the
sculptor Jean-Léon Gérôme. It was
originally on show in the artist’s
own garden but was transferred
here after his property was
destroyed by the explosion of a
barge in 1944.

The Church Notre Dame de l’Assomption
Place des Combattants
The Church was built during the first half of the 12th century and was
restored at the end of 19th century by Lucien Magne, who was one
of the architects who designed the Sacré Cœur in Montmartre. 
The Church Spire is officially grade listed and there are two arches
near the altar which date back to 12th century. The baptismal fonts 
are from the 16th

century and the
altar, carved in 
goldpainted wood
date back to the 
17th century. In the
left transept you
will find Rennequin
Sualem’s epitaph.
On the south side,
do look at the beau-
tiful Art Nouveau
mosaics and stained
glass windows.

Charles Havas’s House
74 rue du Général Leclerc
The man who founded the very first media agencies died there on
21st May 1858.

Upper Bougival, La Jonchère
and the river banks

Blue Circuit

La Garenne
1 Rue de la Croix aux Vents
The author Turgenev and his friends, the Viardots lived in this 18th
century villa before moving to Fresnes. Lucy Arbell, opera singer
and daughter of Edward Wallace spent many years there before
bequeathing it to the Orphelinat des Arts in 1947. Nowadays, it is a
private property.

Monument François Debergue
Route de la Celle St-Cloud
This memorial was erected in memory of a gardener from Bougival.
Who was executed by the Prussians after sabotaging on three 
occasions the telegraph lines that connected the local garrison to
their headquarters in Versailles.

The Jonchère Park
You will find a small classical
building or « temple of love » in
the grounds of this listed
property. From the terrace at the
end of the garden, the visitor can
enjoy a delightful view over the
Seine and the Ile de la Chaussée.

The Villa Viardot « Les Fresnes »
16 Rue Yvan Tourgueneff
The famous opera singer, Pauline Viardot, sister to the equally
famous « Malibran », settled here with her husband in 1874. 
The house was known as « Les Fresnes » and belonged to the Russian
novelist Ivan Tourgueneff. The Viardots hosted prestigious literary 
« salons » here for the intellectual and artistic elite of fin de siècle
Paris. More recently, this was the home of popular actress Gaby
Morlay.

Ivan Turgenev’s Datcha
Parc de la Villa Viardot
In the park which surrounded the villa, the Russian novelist, 
no doubt nostalgic for his homeland had this chalet built. 
He died there in
1883. The Datcha
has since become a
museum devoted 
to Ivan Turgenev’s
life and works.
The museum orga-
nises a number of
temporary exhibi-
tions and concerts
which strive to re-
create the creative
atmosphere of 19th

century « Salons ».

The home of George Bizet
5 Rue Ivan Tourguenievf

In his riverside home, where he spent his final years, George Bizet
composed « Carmen », undoubtedly the most famous of his operas.
He died in this house on 3rd June 1875, barely three months after 
the first performance of « Carmen ».

George Régnault’s Home
9 Rue Yvan Tourgueneff
George Régnault saw himself as the « last of the impressionists ».
This didn’t stop him becoming the first president of the Tourist
Information Office in Bougival.

The Pavillon de Blois
27 quai Georges Clémenceau
This group of buildings is all that is left of the large estate that once
belonged to Mademoiselle de Blois, the daughter of Louis XIV and
Mademoiselle de La Vallière.

Le Camélia
7 quai Georges Clémenceau
This restaurant was given the name « Le Camélia » in memory of the
courtesan Marie Duplessis, immortalised by Alexandre Dumas in
the « Dame aux Camélias ». In the 19th century, it was only one of
many restaurants that could be found along the banks of the river
Seine. It became internationally renowned when it was taken over
by Jean Delaveyne.

The Château de la Jonchère
10 Côte de la Jonchère
In the early 18th century, Gérard de la Jonchère, Lord of Vaucresson
acquired a farm which he refurbished and embellished, effectively
turning it into a stately home. Many famous politicians stayed there :
Adolphe Thiers who was the first President of the third Republic,
Count Tolstoï, the Russian ambassador. Also Prince Richard
Metternich, ambassador of Austria, and son of the Chancellor. 
The emperor Napoleon III and his wife Eugenie often visited Prince
Metternich in Bougival. Clémentine-Marie, daughter of Richard
Metternich was born at the Château on 27th June 1870 and was 
christened there. The Château is now a private property.

The Impressionists’Walk
See Red circuit

From the village of Carrières sur Seine through to Croissy, Chatou,
Bougival, Louveciennes, Marly le Roi and Le Port-Marly, you will find
reproductions of Impressionist paintings in all the precise locations
where these works are deemed to have been painted. This local
initiative, launched in 1994 is known as the « Impressionists’Walk ».
From Bougival, take the red circuit which takes you down along the
river Seine, you will come accross six of the above mentioned
reproductions. (These are numbered T1 to T6 on the map)

T1: The Bougival
Bridge, Painted in
1869 by Claude Monet.
The picture can be found
at the exact spot where
the Patrice Vieljeux Park
once stood. The original
painting is currently on
view at the Currier Gallery
of Art in Manchester.

T2: The Banks of the Seine
Painted by Berthe Morisot in 1883.
It can be seen on the Ile de la
Chaussée, Opposite the quai
Clémenceau, at the foot of a
former pillar of the old bridge. The
original is in the Oslo Museum.

T 3: A Restaurant at Marly le
Roi Painted in 1905 by Maurice
Vlaminck.
Situated on the quai Rennequin
Sualem, on the D 113. The original
is in the Orsay Museum in Paris.
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Opposite the Machine de Marly, in the park
T4: The Road from St Germain to Marly, quai Rennequin
Sualem to Bougival
Painted in 1872 by Alfred Sisley. 
The original is in the San Antonio Museum in Texas.

T5: Barrage de la Machine dîte de Marly
Painted in 1876 by Alfred Sisley. 
The original belongs to a private collector.

T6: Boats at the Bougival Locks
Painted in 1873 by Alfred Sisley. It can be found at the far end of the
Ile de la Loge. The original is at the Musée d’Orsay in Paris.
As you walk along you will also notice monuments which are 
reminiscent of Bougival’s past.

status of war hero through his acts of resistance and defiance
towards the Prussians. He repeatedly sabotaged the telegraph lines
to prevent the local Prussian garrison from communicating with
their head-quarters based in Versailles. He was tried and executed
by the Prussians on the 6th September 1870.

Bougival’s Golden Age

In the closing decades of the 19th century, French society was
subtly transformed. The incipient consumer society increasingly
sought new types of leisure-outings to the country, new sports and
forms of entertainment. Thus Bougival became a popular destina-
tion for Parisians seeking fresh air and outdoor entertainment.
There were many restaurants and hotels on the banks of the river
Seine as well as popular balls in the summer months. Every year,
regattas and rowing competitions were organized on the Seine,
while the Casinos in Bougival and Rueil attracted many punters.

Not surprisingly, many artists were drawn to this picturesque
little village. They sought inspiration in its dreamy riverbanks and its
rolling hills. Turner was one of the first artists to celebrate Bougival
in his work. Then followed Corot and Français. Monet, Renoir, Sisley
and Berthe Morisot all worked in Bougival, often painting on the
banks of the river Seine, depicting the ephemeral beauty produced
by rays of sunlight dancing on the water.

There is a consensus amongst art historians that Bougival was
in effect the birth-place of impressionism. Vlaminck and Fauvism
followed, and the tradition of artistic creation became firmly and
endurably attached to the village of Bougival.

Many intellectuals, composers and scientists were also attracted
to the quaint and peaceful little village. Some even found inspiration
for works that were to bring them fame and lasting recognition.
Georges Bizet composed Carmen in his riverside home. Ivan
Turgenev moved to Bougival to be near his muse, Pauline Viardot
while Alexandre Dumas spent some time in Bougival with Marie
Duplessis who was the inspiration for his novel « La Dame aux
Camélias ».

Nowadays, Bougival is still a beautiful and discreet retreat for
many famous French actors, singers and artists. But above all it is
the home of thousands of « Bougivalais » who take pride in the
peaceful atmosphere, cultural diversity and exceptional heritage of
their village.

We hope that your visit to Bougival will prove pleasant and
memorable and we look forward to seeing you again soon.

Bibliography:
« Bougival et les rives de la Seine »
by Madeleine and Emile HOUTH
« La Seine au temps des Canotiers »
by Benoit NOËL and Jean HOURNON
« La Machine de Marly » by Jacques LAŸ
« Histoire de Bougival » by Adrien MAQUET
« Bougival en images » by Daniel ROBAT, Marie-José ROSSET,
and Françoise Bessard du Parc.

Place Jules-Edouard Couturier

« La danse à Bougival » d’Auguste Renoir
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